
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Council agenda - Wednesday, 17 May 2023 

 Page 1 

Council Agenda 

 
Contact: Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager 
Telephone number 07717 274704 
Email: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date:9 May 2023  
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

Summons to attend 

the annual meeting of Council 

 

to be held on Wednesday 17 May 2023 at 7.00 pm  
The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BX 
 
 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Council agenda - Wednesday, 17 May 2023 

 Page 2 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
   
To record apologies for absence. 
 

2. Election of Chair  
   
To elect a chair of council for the municipal year 2023/24. 
 

3. Appointment of Vice-Chair  
   
To appoint a vice-chair of council for the municipal year 2023/24. 
 

4. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 17)  
  
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Council minutes of the meeting held on 15 
February 2023.   
 

5. Declarations of interest  
   
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests and 
non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the agenda for 
this meeting.  
    

6. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
   
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 

7. Appointment to committees, panels and joint committees for 
2023/24  

(Pages 18 - 23)  
  
To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic on the appointment to those 
committees required to be politically balanced together with the Climate Emergency 
Advisory Committee, the Licensing Acts Committee, area committees and joint 
committees.  
 

8. Election of leader of the council  
   
Council is invited to elect a leader of the council in accordance with the Cabinet 
arrangements and procedure rules as set out in the council’s constitution for a term of 
office beginning immediately and ending on the date of the annual Council meeting in 



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Council agenda - Wednesday, 17 May 2023 

 Page 3 

May 2027 (following the district council elections scheduled for May 2027).  
 
The leader of the council will report on: 

 the appointment of the deputy leader of the council  

 the membership of the Cabinet and the allocation of portfolios  

 the leader’s scheme of delegation to cabinet members and officers 
 

9. Allowances for Independent Persons  
(Pages 24 - 31)  
  
To consider the head of legal and democratic’s report.   
 



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Council 

 

 
held on Wednesday 15 February 2023 at 7.00 pm 
at The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY  
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 
Present in the meeting room:  

Members: Margaret Crick (Chair), Jerry Avery, Paul Barrow, Dr, Ron Batstone, Eric Batts, 
Nathan Boyd, Cheryl Briggs, Andy Cooke, Andy Crawford, Eric de la Harpe, 
Amos Duveen, Neil Fawcett, Andy Foulsham, Hayleigh Gascoigne, David Grant, 
Debby Hallett, Jenny Hannaby, Simon Howell, Alison Jenner, Bob Johnston, 
Diana Lugova, Ben Mabbett, Sarah Medley, Patrick O'Leary, Helen Pighills, Mike Pighills, 
Sally Povolotsky, Judy Roberts, Janet Shelley, Emily Smith, Bethia Thomas, 
Max Thompson, Elaine Ware, Catherine Webber and Richard Webber 
 

Officers: Patrick Arran, Head of Legal & Democratic and Monitoring Officer,  
Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager, Simon Hewings, Head of Finance and   
Section 151 Officer and Mark Stone, Chief Executive 
 
 
Prior to the consideration of the agenda items Margaret Crick, Chair of the council, thanked 
members and officers for their support during her time as Chair since May 2019. Bethia 
Thomas, Leader of the council, Nathan Boyd, Leader of the Conservative Group, and other 
members made statements in support of her role as Chair of council. On behalf of Council 
Bethia Thomas presented Margaret Crick with a bouquet of flowers. 
 
 

54. Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Samantha Bowring,  
Robert Maddison and Val Shaw. 
 

55. Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Council meeting held on 7 December 
2022 as a correct record and agree that the Chair sign them as such.  
 

56. Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

57. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
The Chair provided general housekeeping advice. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 2 

58. Public participation  
 
A. Chris Henderson addressed Council on behalf of the residents of Woodlands and 

Pebble Hill mobile home parks to request no rent increase for the forthcoming year. 
 
He stated that many residents have been struggling with the increase in the costs of 
essential such as energy and food. He alleged that the council makes a significant 
surplus from the parks. Rents have increased by RPI, the maximum permitted under 
the legislation, with the exception of last year when the CPI rate was used. During this 
time, the parks had experienced a reduction in service provision including the loss of 
the wardens. 
 
Whilst appreciating local authority budgetary pressures, he considered it unreasonable 
that Mobile Home Park residents, many amongst the poorer residents in the Vale, 
should disproportionately subsidise services for richer residents. 
 
Councillor Judy Roberts, Cabinet member for development and infrastructure, 
acknowledged the points raised. She stated that the council proposal in its budget for 
consideration at the meeting was to limit the increase to 5%, well below the current 
inflation figure of approximately 10%, recognising the cost-of-living pressures on 
residents. 
 
B. Philip Campbell made a statement on behalf of MEPC in support of the proposal to 

revise the Milton Park Local Development Order – agenda item 12.   
 
C. Councillor Bentley of Faringdon Town Council addressed Council. She asked how 

the Section 106 funds for the cancelled Wessex Leisure Centre would be allocated 
and what percentage of the funds would be allocated to Faringdon. 

 
The Chair of council responded that officers would be in contact with the town clerk in 
due course.   
  

 

59. Petitions  
 
None. 
 

60. Treasury Management Mid-Year Monitoring Report 2022/23  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 3 February 
2023, on the treasury management performance in the first six months of 2022/23.  
 
Councillor Crawford, Cabinet member for finance, reported that income from cash 
investments was likely to be above budget by the financial year end due to increases 
in interest rates that were unexpected when the 2022/23 budget was set.  The report 
set out performance against benchmarks for the first six months of the financial year.  
There had been no borrowing during the first half of the year and borrowing was 
unlikely for the remainder of the year also.   
 
Both the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, at its meeting on 31 January and 
Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 February 2023, were content that the treasury 
management activities had been carried out in accordance with the treasury 
management strategy and policy.   
 
 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 3 

 
RESOLVED: to   
 

1. approve the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023;  

2. note that Cabinet is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in 
accordance with the treasury management strategy and policy.   

 

61. Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2023/24  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations made at its meeting on 3 February 
2023 on the council’s treasury management and investment strategy for 2023/24.  
This set out how the council’s treasury service would support the financing of capital 
investment decisions, and how treasury management operated day to day.  The 
strategy also set out the prudential indicators, providing limits within which the treasury 
function must operate.   
 
Councillor Crawford, Cabinet member for finance highlighted the changes proposed to 
the strategy for 2023/24 as set out in paragraphs 10 and 11 of the report:  

 amend individual maximum counterparty limits for the higher credit rated 
counterparties, increasing the limits for LVNAV & VNAV Money Market Funds to 
£30 million 

 increase specified instruments counterparty limit for banks and building societies 
with a minimum F1, A- credit rating from £10 million to £15 million  

 increase non-specified instruments counterparty limit for institutions with a 
minimum credit rating of F1+, AA- from £10 million to £15 million  

 amend the minimum lending criteria, increasing the minimum asset value criteria 
for non-rated building societies from assets over £1 billion to assets over £2 
billion   

 
Both Cabinet and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee had supported the 
strategy together with approving the prudential indicators and limits and approving the 
annual investment strategy and lending criteria.   
 
RESOLVED: to  
 

1. approve the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023;  

2. approve the treasury management strategy 2023/24, as set out in appendix A to the 
report;  

3. approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2023/24 to 2025/26, as set out in 
appendix A to the report; and  

4. approve the annual investment strategy 2023/24, as set out in appendix A to the 
report, and the lending criteria detailed in table 6 in appendix A to the report.   

 

62. Capital Strategy 2023/24 to 2032/33  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations made at its meeting on 3 February 
2023 on the capital strategy for 2023/24 to 2032/33.   
 
Councillor Crawford, Cabinet member for finance, reported that the strategy would 
provide the parameters within which capital expenditure and investment decisions 
would be made once the supporting requirements were in place.  There were no 
substantive changes to the strategy.  

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 4 

 
RESOLVED: to  
 
1. approve the capital strategy 2023/24 to 2032/33, as set out in appendix 1 of the 

head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023; and  

2. agree the strategy for flexible use of capital receipts, which is contained as 
annex 1 of the capital strategy.   

 

63. Revenue Budget 2023/24 and Capital Programme to 2027/28  
 
The chair referred to regulations that require councils to record the names of those 
members voting in favour, against or abstaining from any vote on the budget, including 
amendments, and the council tax. In accordance with the regulations, she would call 
for a named vote on each of these matters at this meeting. 
  
Council noted the report of the chief finance officer on the robustness of the budget 
estimates and the adequacy of the reserves. 
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting held on 3 
February 2023 on the revenue budget for 2023/24 and the capital programme to 
2027/28.    
 
Councillor Crawford, Cabinet member for finance, presented Cabinet’s proposals for 
the revenue budget and capital programme. He moved and Councillor Fawcett, 
seconded a motion to approve Cabinet’s recommendations as follows: 
 
to   
 

1. set the revenue budget for 2023/24, as set out in appendix A.1 to the head of 
finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023;  

2. approve the capital programme for 2023/24 to 2027/28, as set out in appendix D.1 
to the report, together with the capital programme changes as set out in appendix 
D.2 and appendix D.3 to the report;  

3. set the council’s prudential limits, as listed in appendix E to the report;  

4. approve the medium-term financial plan to 2027/28, as set out in appendix F to the 
report.   

 
In moving the Cabinet recommendations, Councillor Crawford, the Cabinet member 
for finance introduced the draft budget, noting that the council’s financial position had 
improved with this year’s budget contributing £2.5 million to reserves.  There were no 
service cuts in the budget. The budget allocated funds to continue supporting the 
community hub at a time when the government funding for this service was coming to 
an end.  The medium term financial plan showed that the council was in a stable 
financial position for the next two years, but thereafter government funding was 
uncertain.  Council tax would increase by £5 per Band D property, the maximum 
allowed before a referendum was required.  The capital programme included a new 
learner pool at Wantage Leisure Centre, with funds provided from section 106 
contributions.  Capital was also allocated towards the Local Authority Housing Fund 
project, supported by government funding.  Funds were also set aside for 
decarbonisation projects at Wantage Leisure Centre and the White Horse Leisure and 
Tennis Centre, which had been supported by government grants.   
 
 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 5 

 
Conservative Group amendment 
 
Councillor Howell moved and Councillor Boyd seconded the following amendment: 
 
1) That the Band D Council Tax for 2023/24 be increased by £3.20 instead of £5.00, 

2) That two hours free car parking be reinstated.  An indicative estimate of the cost of 

this measure is £75,000 per annum, but the service would be expected to be 

managed within the new budget envelope created,  

3) That the climate emergency grant funding be increased from £50,000 to £100,000 

per annum, 

4) That the funding for the community hub for 2023/24 be increased by £100,000. 

 
In moving the amendment Councillor Howell stated that the overall cost of the 
amendment was estimated to be £1.251 million over the Medium-Term Financial Plan 
(MFTP) period and could be funded from reserves. At the end of the five-year MFTP 
period reserves would not have fallen below the minimum balance of 10 per cent of 
net revenue expenditure. The amendment would support residents during the current 
cost of living crisis with a lower council tax bill, support both residents and traders with 
the reinstatement of the two hours free car parking, support the council’s work on 
tackling the climate emergency with an increase in the climate emergency grant fund 
and provide further support for the district’s most vulnerable residents with an increase 
in funding for the community hub. 

A number of members spoke against the amendment. Increasing council tax by the 
maximum level permitted would provide a sustainable and financially sensible budget 
and not undermine the MTFP. Previous low levels of council tax had undermined the 
financial position of the council. In respect of the car park fees, the reduction in the 
free charging period had reduced the budget deficit and there was no evidence to 
suggest that there had been a reduction in the use of the car parks. The current level 
of climate emergency grant adequately met the level of demand for grants and there 
was therefore no need to increase the budget. Likewise, the community hub budget 
was sufficient to cover the needs of the service.    

In accordance with regulations requiring councils to record the names of those 
members voting in favour, against or abstaining from any vote on the budget the chair 
called for a recorded vote which was not carried with the voting being as follows: 
 
 

For Against Abstentions 

Eric Batts Jerry Avery  

Nathan Boyd Paul Barrow  

Simon Howell Ron Batstone  

Ben Mabbett Cheryl Briggs  

Janet Shelley Andy Cooke  

Elaine Ware Andrew Crawford  

 Margaret Crick  

 Eric de la Harpe  

 Amos Duveen  

 Neil Fawcett  

 Andy Foulsham  

 Hayleigh Gascoigne  

 David Grant  

 Debby Hallett  

 Jenny Hannaby  

 Alison Jenner  

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 6 

For Against Abstentions 

 Bib Johnston  

 Diana Lugova  

 Sarah Medley  

 Patrick O’Leary  

 Helen Pighills  

 Mike Pighills  

 Sally Povolotsky  

 Judy Roberts  

 Emily Smith  

 Bethia Thomas  

 Max Thompson  

 Catherine Webber  

 Richard Webber  

Total: 6 Total: 29 Total: 0 

 
 

Amendment 
 
Councillor Gascoigne moved and Councillor Mabbett seconded the following motion: 
 
To provide 100K per annum for the next five years of the Medium-Term Financial Plan 
for the climate emergency grant fund and ask officers to bring forward proposals to 
increase the scope of eligible projects.  
 
In supporting the amendment, a number of members stated that the current grant 
criteria limited the number of projects coming forward. Amending the scope and 
increasing the budget would facilitate more projects coming forward for funding to help 
tackle the climate emergency. With the agreement of Council, both the mover and 
seconder of the original motion accepted the amendment. 
 
 
A number of members welcomed the funding in the budget to continue the community 
hub, which had operated since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic and had assisted 
residents during the cost-of-living crisis.  The hub had also supported refugees and 
their host families in the district.  Other members supported the investment in leisure 
facilities by providing funds for a new learner pool at Wantage whilst others expressed 
support for the allocation of funds towards the decarbonisation projects at two leisure 
centres, which put climate at the heart of decision-making and would reduce running 
costs.   
 
In accordance with regulations requiring councils to record the names of those 
members voting in favour, against or abstaining from any vote on the budget the chair 
called for a recorded vote which was carried with the voting being as follows: 
 

For Against Abstentions 

Jerry Avery   

Paul Barrow   

Ron Batstone    

Eric Batts   

Nathan Boyd   

Cheryl Briggs   

Andy Cooke   

Andrew Crawford   

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 7 

For Against Abstentions 

Margaret Crick   

Eric de la Harpe   

Amos Duveen   

Neil Fawcett   

Andy Foulsham   

Hayleigh Gascoigne   

David Grant   

Debby Hallett   

Jenny Hannaby   

Simon Howell   

Alison Jenner   

Bob Johnston   

Diana Lugova   

Ben Mabbett   

Sarah Medley   

Patrick O’Leary   

Helen Pighills   

Mike Pighills   

Sally Povolotsky   

Judy Roberts   

Janet Shelley   

Emily Smith   

Bethia Thomas   

Max Thompson   

Elaine Ware   

Catherine Webber   

Richard Webber   

Total: 35 Total: 0 Total: 0 

 
RESOLVED: (unanimously) to   
 

1. set the revenue budget for 2023/24, as set out in appendix A.1 to the head of 
finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023 subject to an increase in the climate 
change grant scheme to £100k per annum for five years and a request that officers 
bring forward proposals to increase the scope of eligible projects;  

2. approve the capital programme for 2023/24 to 2027/28, as set out in appendix D.1 
to the report, together with the capital programme changes as set out in appendix 
D.2 and appendix D.3 to the report;  

3. set the council’s prudential limits, as listed in appendix E to the report;  

4. approve the medium-term financial plan to 2027/28, as set out in appendix F to the 
report.   

 
Members thanked the head of finance and his team for the work undertaken to 
prepare the budget.   
 

64. Council Tax 2023/24  
 
Council considered the report of the head of finance on the setting of the Council Tax for the 
2023/24 financial year.  
 
In accordance with regulations requiring councils to record the names of those members 
voting in favour, against or abstaining from any vote on the council tax the chair called for a 
recorded vote which was carried with the voting being as follows: 

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 8 

 

For Against Abstentions 

Jerry Avery   

Paul Barrow   

Ron Batstone    

Eric Batts   

Nathan Boyd   

Cheryl Briggs   

Andy Cooke   

Andrew Crawford   

Margaret Crick   

Eric de la Harpe   

Amos Duveen   

Neil Fawcett   

Andy Foulsham   

Hayleigh Gascoigne   

David Grant   

Debby Hallett   

Jenny Hannaby   

Simon Howell   

Alison Jenner   

Bob Johnston   

Diana Lugova   

Ben Mabbett   

Sarah Medley   

Patrick O’Leary   

Helen Pighills   

Mike Pighills   

Sally Povolotsky   

Judy Roberts   

Janet Shelley   

Emily Smith   

Bethia Thomas   

Max Thompson   

Elaine Ware   

Catherine Webber   

Richard Webber   

Total: 35 Total: 0 Total: 0 

 

RESOLVED 

1. To note that at its meeting on 7 December 2022 the council calculated the 
council tax base 2023/24: 

(a) for the whole council area as 56,664.9 [Item T in the formula in Section 31B of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)]; and 

 (b) for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a parish precept relates as in 
column 1 of appendix 1.  

2. That the council tax requirement for the council’s own purposes for 2023/24 
(excluding parish precepts) is £8,595,499 

3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 
with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 9 

(a) £84,770,721 being the aggregate of the amounts which the council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into account all precepts issued to it 
by parish councils.  

(b) £71,154,591 being the aggregate of the amounts which the council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.  

(c) £13,616,130 being the amount by which the aggregate at (3)(a) above exceeds the 
aggregate at (3)(b) above, calculated by the council, in accordance with Section 
31A(4) of the Act as its council tax requirement for the year.  (Item R in the formula in 
Section 31B) of the Act). 

(d) £240.29 being the amount at (3)(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the council, in accordance with Section 31(B) of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its council tax for the year (including parish precepts). 

(e) £5,020,631 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in Section 
34(1) of the Act, as set out in column 2 of appendix 1.  

(f) £151.69 being the amount at (3)(d) above less the result given by dividing the 
amount at (3)(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), calculated by the council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its council tax for 
the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no parish precept relates. 

4. To note that for the year 2023/24 Oxfordshire County Council has stated the 
following amounts in precepts issued to the council, in accordance with Section 
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of 
dwellings shown below:  

Band A £1,156.02 

Band B £1,348.69 

Band C £1,541.36 

Band D £1,734.03 

Band E £2,119.37 

Band F £2,504.71 

Band G £2,890.05 

Band H £3,468.06 

 
5. To note that for the year 2023/24 the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Thames Valley has stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the 
council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:  

Band A £170.85 

Band B £199.33 

Band C £227.80 

Band D £256.28 

Band E £313.23 

Band F £370.18 

Band G £427.13 

Band H £512.56 

 
6.      That, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in appendix 3 as the 
amounts of council tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area and for each of the 
categories of dwellings shown in appendix 3. 

7.      To determine that the council’s basic amount of council tax for 2023/24 is not 
excessive in accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. 

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 10 

 

65. Milton Park - Proposed Revised Local Development Order  
 
Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations made at its meeting on 3 February 
2023 on the proposed revised local development order for Milton Park.   
 
Cabinet had welcomed the revised Local Development Order and the aims of the 
owners to further improve Milton Park.   
 
RESOLVED: to adopt the Milton Park Local Development Order, as set out in 
Appendix 1 to the head of planning’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2023, subject to 
completion of a legal agreement securing the elements referred to in paragraph 24 of 
the report.   
 

66. Progress on approved Council motions  
 
Council noted the schedule showing the progress on approved motions. 
 

67. Report of the Leader of the council  
 
Councillor Thomas, Leader of the council, provided an update on a number of matters. 
The text of her address is available on the council’s website.  
 

68. Questions on notice  
 

A. Question from Councillor Bob Johnston to Councillor Debby Hallett – 

Cabinet member for Corporate Services and Transformation  

Now that work on OxPlan50 has ceased, what are the council’s priorities for the new 
Joint Local Plan 2041? 
 
Written answer 

 
Now that work has ceased on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, the Council is taking the 
‘Guiding Principles’ for Good Growth from the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision to inspire 
and help shape the Joint Local Plan. Vale Council’s priorities for the Joint Local Plan 
have been recently set out on the Council’s website in a joint message from Cllrs 
Debby Hallett and Anne-Marie Simpson, Cabinet Members for Planning at the Vale 
and South Oxfordshire. This is available on the Vale of White Horse website ( 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-
development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2041/). The message sets out 
that the focus of the Joint Local Plan will be different from the last local plan and states 
that: 

 Working to these Good Growth principles means thinking radically about how 
much development we plan, where it is located and how it is done. 

 Rather than more of the same kind of development we’ve seen in recent years, 
we will focus on delivering homes to meet the actual local need. 

 We will look at the number of and types of homes, their affordability and the 
energy efficiency standards they need to meet. 

 We will use the opportunities we have through the planning system to protect 
nature and increase nature recovery. 

 We will help tackle climate change by reducing carbon emissions, recognising 
this as an emergency and in line with our ambition to become zero carbon 
districts. 

Page 13

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/uncategorised/leaders-statement-15-february-2023/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2041/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2041/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 11 

 We will focus on community health and wellbeing and locate new homes near 
to work places and community facilities. 

 We will work hard to secure new and improved social and physical 
infrastructure to support development, ensuring that developers contribute a fair 
share of the cost. 

 

B. Question from Councillor Emily Smith to Councillor Bethia Thomas - 

Council Leader and Cabinet Member for Community Engagement  

Our district is home to so many inspirational individuals, charities and community groups. Over 
the past three years as we have lived through COVID-19 and now a national cost of living 
crisis, it's been incredible how Vale residents have stepped up to help each other.  
 
During COVID-19 the Chair's Community Awards were not able to go ahead, but it would be 
wonderful to recognise the contribution of some of the volunteers we work with in our 
communities in some way. Are there any plans to hold the community awards again, or 
something similar? 
 
Written answer 
 

I agree wholeheartedly with Councillor Smith that we are truly blessed in our district 
with so many individuals and organisations who show real community spirit. 

Throughout the pandemic and subsequently, we have seen so many people stepping 
up to help people in their community and to offer support to people who are asylum 
seekers and refugees from countries around the world. This has built on the strong 
tradition we have in Vale of community resilience. 

During the pandemic we could not bring people together physically to say ‘thank you’ 
to recognise and celebrate the true spirit of ‘the Vale’, but we would like to revive that 
tradition. The break has given us a good opportunity to have a fresh look at the format 
of the Chair’s Community Awards to ensure they reflect the renewed focus on 
community since the pandemic, and so following the election, officers will work with 
the incumbent Chair to investigate creating a new, vibrant and fitting tribute to honour 
the Vale's community champions. 

 

C. Question from Councillor Andy Cooke to Councillor Helen Pighills - 

Cabinet Member for Healthy Communities 

I am aware that the Council has done much work to support refugees; I’m personally 
aware of support given to refugees from Ukraine and Afghanistan. 

Residents of my ward have been very welcoming to refugees; it’s something that gives 
me pride, so it does make the issue close to my heart.  I’d like to take the opportunity 
to have the work done by officers behind the scenes highlighted, as it is something in 
which the entire Council can take pride.  

Could you give Council an outline of the work done by the officers and the council to 
support refugees over the past year and more, and an overview of the schemes 
involved? 

Written answer 
 

We are immensely proud of the vital work this council has done alongside our 
partners, residents, community groups and voluntary sector organisations, to help 
provide safe shelter and support to refugees and asylum seekers.  The council, as 
part of the Oxfordshire system which includes local authority, health and VCS partners 
working closely together, are supporting across a number of schemes.  These are 
Homes for Ukraine, Afghan Relocations and Assistance Policy scheme, Afghan 

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 12 

Citizens Resettlement scheme, UK Resettlement Schemes, the Hong Kong British 
National (Overseas) visa scheme and unaccompanied asylum-seeking children.  In 
addition, the Oxfordshire system is also supporting a range of Home Office 
contingency and dispersed accommodation pathways. 
 
The work our officers have undertaken and continue to provide, co-ordinated through 
our Community Hub, includes a wraparound support offer to settle guests in the 
district, distribution of government grants, providing housing and homeless advice and 
assistance, community integration support and supporting access to schooling, 
language lessons, access to medical services, benefits and support into employment.  
Cabinet is pleased that the proposed budget for 2023/24 includes the allocation of 
funds to continue our vital support by extending our Community Hub for two more 
years initially.  
 

D. Question from Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne to Councillor Judy Roberts 
– Cabinet Member for Development, Infrastructure and Development 
Management  

People living in the Didcot area have seen a great deal of growth in housing numbers 
and population in their town and the surrounding area over recent years. Local 
residents expect the infrastructure to be provided to support this and any future 
growth.  I understand that the S106 agreement for Great Western Park included 
money allocated for a much needed GP surgery.  
 
Can we have an update on progress of the healthcare facility? Additionally, can the 
role of the council in provision of healthcare services be explained? 
 
Written answer 
 
Members will be aware that the council has no statutory role in provision of healthcare 
services.  It is the responsibility of the Integrated Care Board (ICB) to determine need 
to meet any growth in population as part of the planning consultation process.  
  
It is the case that the S106 agreement for Great Western Park secured a part 
contribution towards the total cost of delivery by health partners of the healthcare 
facilities.  It also directs that the land be transferred via the council for this purpose.    
  
As part of this land ownership provision the council is positively supporting the 
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board and related 
stakeholders to procure the provision of the healthcare facilities on the site. Regular 
meetings are taking place between the various parties to move the project forward and 
the ICB/council is looking to share a joint update with local residents shortly. 
 
Supplementary question and answer 
 
In response to a supplementary regarding the timing of the update, Councillor Roberts 
responded that she hoped an update would be available by the end of March and that 
the delivery of the project was dependent on discussions with a number of partners. 
 

E. Question from Councillor Nathan Boyd to Councillor Helen Pighills – 

Cabinet Member for Healthy Communities  

We know that Vale of White Horse District Council has played an important role in the 
relocation and housing of refugees from Afghanistan and the upsurge in those arriving 
in the UK via small boats, and thanks should go to our officers who have played a 
significant role on this. Is the Cabinet Member for Healthy Communities able to say 

Page 15



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 13 

how many refugees and asylum seekers this council has assisted since 2019 and 
what ongoing support is available to those seeking safety and asylum in our district?  
 
Written answer 
 
We are immensely proud of the vital work this council has done alongside our 
partners, residents, community groups and voluntary sector organisations, to help 
provide safe shelter and support to refugees and asylum seekers.  Our officer teams, 
co-ordinated through our Community Hub, continue to provide a wraparound support 
offer to settle guests in the district, distribute government grants, provide housing and 
homeless advice and assistance, offer community integration support and support 
access to schooling, language lessons, access to medical services, benefits and 
support into employment. 
 
Some specific examples of work undertaken to support the Homes for Ukraine 
scheme, where we currently have approximately 400 Ukrainian guests living with 230 
different hosts within our district includes: 
 

 Setting up the relevant processes to enable the necessary safeguarding and 

accommodation checks to be completed for hosts that have generously opened 

up their homes to guest. 

 Ensuring that appropriate guest, host and community communication and 

support arrangements are in place.   

 Establishing a local rematching approach.  

 Developing and delivering a discretionary guest payment scheme. 

 Providing housing and homeless advice and assistance. 

 Developing approaches to support ‘Moving On’ options into independent 

accommodation for guests. 

 
Under the Afghan Relocation and Assistance Policy (ARAP) scheme, Vale of White 
Horse District Council has successfully resettled four Afghan families.  Under the 
United Kingdom Resettlement Scheme (UKRS), one refugee family has settled within 
the district and two further UKRS families are due to arrive in February.   
 
All of the families receive two-weeks intensive support on arrival to help them settle 
into our district, and they continue to receive structured support for the first year and 
ongoing access to help thereafter.   
 
Cabinet is pleased that the proposed budget for 2023/24 includes the allocation of 
funds to continue our vital support by extending our Community Hub for two more 
years initially.  
 

F. Question from Councillor Ben Mabbett to Councillor Andy Crawford – 

Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate Assets 

The Beacon in Wantage is a vital hub for both the surrounding community and our 
wider District and an excellent events facility, providing a great location for public arts 
performances and as an excellent meeting venue. There have long been rumours of a 
possible closure and development of the site stretching back over several 
administrations.  
 
Can the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate Assets confirm that The Beacon 
is remaining open for the foreseeable future as a vital community asset?  
 
 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes - Wednesday, 15 February 2023 14 

Written answer 
 
Can I thank Councillor Mabbett for his question as it allows me to put the right the 
rumours, which have also been brought to my attention, he refers to. 
 
This administration has no plans to close The Beacon. In this evening’s budget papers 
the revenue budget includes income and expenditure for The Beacon for the coming 
year and a revenue projection for the full five-year term of the Medium Term Financial 
Plan. He will also see that in the capital section of the budget we have committed to 
capital expenditure on The Beacon to make vital improvements to the structure of the 
building so as to improve the experience for users and enhance its viability.  
 
The COVID 19 pandemic presented a major challenge to venues such as The 
Beacon, closed as it was for very many months, although members will recall the vital 
role that The Beacon served at that time where it operated as a Covid testing centre 
and hub.  Last year, officers arranged a highly popular, well attended open day at The 
Beacon to promote and reinvigorate its usage to both existing and new users. We also 
continue to arrange and promote a schedule of events.   
 
His question refers to “rumours over several administrations”.  I cannot comment on 
any plans of the two previous Conservative administrations may have had.  Moreover, 
given that his party has not presented a budget tonight were his party again in 
administration can I assume that his party do not have plans to close The Beacon or 
redevelop it for other purposes?  
 
In summary, no, this Liberal Democrat administration have no plans to close The 
Beacon but rather continue to invest in it and develop plans to further increase its 
popularity and long-term viability. If Councillor Mabbett knows the source of these 
rumours I would love to know. 
 
Supplementary question and answer 
 

In response to a supplementary question regarding what further investment could be 
made for the retention and ongoing and increase the use of the facility Councillor 
Crawford responded that the capital budget provided for a number of initiatives to 
support The Beacon. There were no plans to reopen the café which was not well used 
and would need to compete with better placed outlets with the town.   
 

69. Motions on notice  
 
No motions on notice were submitted for consideration by members.  
 

70. Pay Policy Statement 2023/24  
 
Council considered the report of the head of corporate services on the adoption of a 
pay policy statement to meet the requirements of the Localism Act. 
  
RESOLVED: to approve the statement of pay policy for 2023/24 attached to the report 
of the head of corporate services to the Council meeting on 15 February 2023. 

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.10pm  

 
 
Chair:       Date:  

Page 17



Council report 
 

Report of Head of Legal and Democratic  

Author: Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager 

Tel: 07717 274704 

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk 

To: COUNCIL 

DATE: 17 May 2023 
 

Appointments to committees, panels 

and joint committees 2023/24 

Recommendations 

That Council: 

1. appoints the committees and panels for the 2023/24 year, allocates seats to each 
political group and appoints councillors and substitutes to sit on them in 
accordance with paragraphs 8-12 of this report and as set out in the schedule 
circulated at the meeting; 

2. appoints chairs and vice-chairs as set out in the schedule circulated at the 
meeting; 

3. appoints all local members representing the wards covered by the relevant area 
committees to those committees for the 2023/24 municipal year; in accordance 
with paragraph 13 of this report and as set out in the schedule circulated at the 
meeting; 

4. appoints councillors to the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee in accordance 
with paragraphs 14 and 15 of this report and as set out in the schedule circulated 
at the meeting; 

5. appoints councillors to the Licensing Acts Committee in accordance with 
paragraphs 16-18 of this report and as set out in the schedule circulated at the 
meeting;  

6. appoints a representative and a substitute on the Oxfordshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 

7. appoints a representative and a substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime 
Panel; 

8. appoints three representatives to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny 
Panel; 

9. authorises the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to any vacant 
committee or panel seat and substitute positions in accordance with the wishes of 
the relevant group leader. 

 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



 

Purpose of report 

1. This report invites Council to agree appointments to those committees required to 
be politically balanced together with the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee, 
area committees and the Licensing Acts Committee. It also invites Council to make 
appointments to joint bodies. 
 

Background 

2. The Council is required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to appoint 
committees, review the political balance and to appoint councillors to the 
committees annually.  

 
3. In summary the Council has a duty to ensure the following principles are adhered 

to: 
(i) not all seats are allocated to the same political group 
(ii) a majority group should get the majority of seats on each committee 
(iii) the seats allocated to groups on a committee reflect the membership of the 

Council as a whole 
(iv) the allocation of the total number of seats on all committees reflects the 

membership as a whole.  
 
4. Ordinary committees are those that have decision-making powers but excluding the 

Licensing Acts Committee and area committees.  
 

Strategic Objectives 

5. This report supports the council’s corporate plan theme of Working in an open and 
inclusive way.  It is also in line with the council’s requirement to review the political 
complexion of committees and other bodies, having regard to the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

Political balance 

6. The number of seats held by the various political groups following the elections on 
May 4 2023 is as follows: 

Liberal Democrat 34      89.5%) 
 
Green            4     10.5 (%)  

 
7. The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 

require a constituted political group to be two or more members.   
  

Page 19



Composition of committees 

8. The ordinary committees and panels that are required to be politically balanced 
both individually, and overall, are set out below.  

Committee Members Comments 

Vale Scrutiny Committee 9  

Joint Scrutiny Committee  5  10 in total with South 
Oxfordshire District Council 

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee                          

4  8 in total with South 
Oxfordshire District Council 

Planning Committee   9  

General Licensing Committee  12  

Community Governance and 
Electoral Issues Committee   

6   

Appeals Panel  3  

Joint Staff Committee 5 10 in total with South 
Oxfordshire District Council 

   

Totals 53  

 

 The membership of the General Licensing Committee and the Licensing Acts 
Committee are the same, although they are two separate entities. This allows for a 
sufficiently large, well trained pool of councillors from which to draw the Taxi 
Licensing and Licensing Panels and avoids confusion as to which members are on 
which committee. These committees may appoint the same, or different chairs and 
vice chairs. 
 

 The co-chairs of the Joint Scrutiny committee should be the same as the chairs of 
the district Scrutiny committees to eliminate potential conflict around the call in 
arrangements and work programmes. 

 
9. The terms of reference of the council’s committees and panels are set out in the 

constitution. 
 
10. The political balance calculation and the entitlements to seats on committees are 

set out in the tables below.  Fractional entitlements of less than one half are 
rounded down and entitlements of one half or more are rounded up.  

 

Group 
members/non-group 
councillor 

Group 
members 

Number of 
committee seats 

Liberal Democrat 34 47 

Green 4 6 

TOTAL  38 53 

 

 

Page 20



Committee Total 
number 
of seats 

Liberal 
Democrat    

Green 

Scrutiny  9  8 1 

Planning 9  8 1 

General Licensing 
Committee 

12 11 1 

Appeals Panel 3  3 0 

Joint Scrutiny 5  4 1 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 

4  4 0 

Community 
Governance and 
Electoral Issues 
Committee 

6 5 1 

Joint Staff Committee 5 4 1 

    

Total 53 47 6 

 
11. If the Council wishes to allocate any seats not in accordance with the political 

balance requirements it can only do so if no councillor votes against the proposal. 

Substitutes 

12. Each political group is entitled to the same number of preferred substitutes as the 
number of ordinary seats it holds on a committee or panel, and up to a maximum of 
three preferred substitutes where it has fewer than three members on a committee 
or panel. All substitutes for regulatory committees must have met the relevant 
training requirement, regardless of whether they are preferred or other substitutes. 
 

Area Committees 

13. In 2003, the Council established area committees with the terms of reference set 
out in the council’s constitution. The areas were revised by Council in May 2015. In 
January 2011 the Executive delegated the award of community grants to the area 
committees. The area committees consist of councillors for the relevant area only.  
Council is invited to confirm the membership of the area committees for the next 
municipal year as those local members representing those areas. The Council is 
asked to note that the area committees do not need to be politically balanced and, 
therefore, the area committees are not included in the calculation of seats to 
political groups. Council is requested to appoint councillors to the area committees 
as set out in the schedule circulated at the meeting.  
 

Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 

14. This committee with a membership of seven members is not subject to the 
regulations detailed in paragraph 3 of this report and, therefore, has no effect on the 

Page 21



overall allocation of seats. For this committee to be politically balanced alone, it is 
suggested that 6 seats are allocated to the Liberal Democrat Group and 1 to the 
Green Group. 

15. In accordance with the Council’s constitution, each political group is entitled to 
substitutes as detailed in paragraph 12 above. 

 

Licensing Acts Committee 

16. The Licensing Acts Committee is a statutory committee and is not required to be 
included in the calculation of political balance. The whole committee meets rarely to 
deal with licensing and gambling policy matters but a membership of 12 provides a 
pool of councillors from which panels of three can be drawn to deal with hearings 
relating to premises licence applications and reviews, and gambling matters. 
 

17. Council has previously agreed to appoint a committee in accordance with the 
political balance of the Council. The membership will mirror the membership of the 
General Licensing Committee and will, therefore, be politically balanced but will not 
in itself contribute to the total political balance of the council’s committees. 

 
18. As a statutory committee with a specified membership substitutes may not be 

appointed. 
 

Eligibility to sit on committees and panels. 
 

 Any member of the council may be appointed to any committee with the following 
exceptions and caveats: 

 No member of Cabinet may sit on any Scrutiny Committee; 

 No member of Cabinet may sit on the Joint Audit and Governance Committee; 

 No member of Cabinet may sit on the Planning Committee; 

 No member may sit on an Area Committee if they do not represent that area; 

 The Chair or Vice Chair of Council may not be the Chair or Vice Chair of any 
committee or panel; 

 No Cabinet member may be the Chair or Vice Chair of any committee or panel with 
the exception of the Joint Staff Committee; 

 Most panels meet during the daytime, and only members who have some daytime 
availability should be selected for these panels. This includes General Licensing 
Committee and Licensing Acts Committee, which do most of their work through 
daytime panels. 

 

Appointments 
 
19. Officers have invited group leaders to submit the names of councillors they wish to 

sit on each of the above bodies. A table of nominations will be circulated prior to the 
meeting. 

 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
20. Council is invited to appoint a representative and a named substitute to the 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 22



 

Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel  

21. Council is invited to appoint a representative and a substitute to the Thames Valley 
Police and Crime Panel.  

 

Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel 
 

22. The Future Oxfordshire Scrutiny Panel enables effective and coordinated scrutiny of 
the Future Oxfordshire Partnership functions, recommendations and decisions. The 
Scrutiny Panel is non-statutory to enable flexibility for the constituent councils to 
reflect local scrutiny membership.  The ability of the constituent council scrutiny 
committees to scrutinise the Future Oxfordshire Partnership remains.  The chair will 
be elected by the members of the Scrutiny Panel. 

23. As a non-statutory panel, the Scrutiny Panel does not need to be politically 
balanced, but councils are asked to have regard to their own political balance in 
making appointments.  

24. Council is invited to appoint three representatives to the Scrutiny Panel. 
           

Financial implications 
 
25. There are no direct financial implications. 
 

Legal implications 
 
26. These are set out in the body of the report. 
 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

27. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report.  
 

Conclusion 
 

28. In deciding the committees and panels it wishes to establish for the 2022/23 year, 
Council is required to allocate seats to political groups in the same proportion as 
they hold on the council as a whole.  Against that background, Council is invited to 
establish the committees and panels set out in the table in paragraph 9 of this report 
and to appoint councillors to them. Council is also invited to appoint councillors to 
the area committees, the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee and the 
Licensing Acts Committee and to appoint representatives to the Oxfordshire Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Thames Valley Police and Crime 
Panel and the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel. If all committee and 
panel seats and substitute places are not filled at the meeting, Council is invited to 
delegate authority to the head of legal and democratic to make appointments in 
accordance with the wishes of the relevant group leader.  
 

Background Papers: None. 

Page 23



Council 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic  

Author: Steve Culliford  

Telephone: 07895 213735  

Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk   

To: COUNCIL  

DATE: 17 May 2023  

 

  

Allowances for Independent Persons 

 

Recommendations  

 
That Council: 
 
1. considers the recommendations of the Joint Independent Remuneration Panel;   
 
2. agrees that an allowance of £1,768 per annum be paid to the independent member 

of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee with effect from the date of the 
appointment, the cost shared equally with South Oxfordshire District Council;   

 
3. agrees that an allowance of £583 per annum be paid to each independent person 

appointed by the head of legal and democratic to assist in dealing with code of 
conduct matters, the cost shared equally with South Oxfordshire District Council, 
and to be backdated to 1 April 2023;   

 
4. agrees that the allowances above be subject to annual increases in line with the 

increase in allowances paid to councillors; and  
 
5. authorise the head of legal and democratic to update the councillors’ allowances 

scheme to make reference to the allowances to independent persons set out above.   
 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To consider the report and recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel on allowances for independent persons.   

Background 

2. The Local Government Act 2000 and Local Government (Members Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 require the council to make a scheme of allowances 
payable to councillors and to make payments only in accordance with the adopted 
scheme.  An independent remuneration panel must be established to review the 
councillors’ allowances scheme and make recommendations on the level of 
allowances to be paid.  Council is responsible for approving the councillors’ 
allowances scheme.  Council must have regard to, but is not bound by, the panel’s 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9

mailto:steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk


recommendations.  The Council established a joint Independent Remuneration Panel 
with South Oxfordshire District Council for this purpose in 2020.  Council adopted a 
councillors’ allowances scheme in 2021.  The scheme sets out allowances for elected 
district councillors but does not include allowances for any independent roles.   

 
3. At its meeting on 7 December 2022 Council considered the recommendations of the 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee from its meeting on 15 November 2022 and 
resolved to appoint an independent person to that committee.  The head of legal and 
democratic was authorised to make that appointment.  Council also resolved to ask 
the Independent Remuneration Panel to consider an appropriate level of 
remuneration for the role of independent person to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and an appropriate level of remuneration to the independent persons 
dealing with code of conduct matters.   

 
4. An independent person is a non-councillor who is suitably qualified for the role and 

brings specialist knowledge, expertise and insight.  They bring an independent view 
to the council, reinforcing political neutrality.   

 

Panel report 

5. In February 2023 the Independent Remuneration Panel met to consider the Council’s 
December 2022 decision to:  

 ask the panel to consider an appropriate level of remuneration for the role of 
independent person to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee; and  

 ask the panel to consider an appropriate level of remuneration for the 
independent persons dealing with code of conduct matters if the panel consider 
that the roles should be remunerated.   

 
6. Appended to this covering report is the report of the Independent Remuneration 

Panel.  This details the reasons and rationale for the panel’s recommendations.   
 
7. The panel believes that both roles should be remunerated.  The panel has 

recommended that: 

 the role of independent person to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
should receive an allowance of 50 per cent of the special responsibility 
allowance paid to the chair of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  
Therefore, from 1 April 2023 the allowance for the independent person on the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee should be £1,768 per annum (50% of 
the chair’s allowance of £3,535).   

 the independent persons dealing with code of conduct matters should each 
receive an allowance of 33 per cent of the allowance payable to the 
independent person on the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  Therefore, 
from 1 April 2023 the allowance for these independent persons dealing with 
code of conduct matters should be £583 per annum (33% of £1,768).   

 

Failure to fulfil the independent role 

8. Currently, these independent roles are not remunerated.  If Council adopts the 
panel’s recommendations the independent persons appointed to these roles will be 
paid an allowance, funded from the public purse.  The holders of these roles must be 
held accountable to the council.  If an independent member/person is not fulfilling 
their role to which they were appointed, and for which they are being paid an 
allowance by the council, the council should be able to remove that person from the 

Page 25



independent role and replace them.  Detailed proposals will come forward as part of 
the constitution review.   

 

Financial Implications 

9. There will be one independent member of the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee and there are currently six independent persons assisting the Monitoring 
Officer with code of conduct casework.  The current budget does not include 
provision for the payment of these allowances.  If the allowances are approved, 
officers will consider submitting an essential growth bid for the 2024/25 financial year.  
Payment of the allowances in 2023/24 will be met from either underspends in the 
current base budget or from contingency.  The allowances paid will be shared equally 
with South Oxfordshire District Council.  The allowance for the independent person 
on the Joint Audit and Governance Committee will be paid from the date of their 
appointment.  This means that this council’s share of the allowances will equate to a 
maximum of £884 in 2023/24 to the independent person on the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee and £291.50 per annum to each independent person 
appointed to assist the council in code of conduct matters.   

 
10. To follow normal practice, these allowances should be subject to annual increases in 

line with the increases of councillors’ allowances, which are tied to increases in staff 
salaries.   

 

Legal Implications 

11. There is no legal requirement for the council to award allowances to the independent 
member of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee or to the independent persons 
assisting with code of conduct work.  However, in the case of the former, the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy recommends co-opting an 
independent person to the council’s committee.  Some councils have done this and 
are paying an allowance for this role.  As such, Council chose to ask the panel to 
recommend suitable levels of remuneration.   

Equality and diversity implications  

12. The award of allowances to these independent roles may contribute to increasing the 
diversity and making these roles more accessible.  

Climate and Ecological Emergencies Implications 

13. There are no direct climate and ecological implications arising from this report.   

Conclusion 

14. The Independent Remuneration Panel undertook a review of allowances for 
independent persons at the request of Council.  The panel has recommended that 
allowances are paid to the individuals appointed to these roles.  The cost will be 
shared equally with South Oxfordshire District Council.   

 
 

 
 

Page 26



Appendices  
 

 Appendix 1 – the Independent Remuneration Panel’s report, dated March 2023 
 
 

Background papers 
 
None  
 
 
 

Page 27



   

Appendix 1 

 

                 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

 

 

The report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
appointed to review the allowances paid to Councillors 

of South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse District 
Councils 

 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

March 2023

Page 28



 

 
 

CONTENTS  

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE .......................................................................................... 2 

2. CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ........................................................................................ 1 

2.1 INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ......................................................... 1 
2.2 INDEPENDENT PERSONS ALLOWANCE ............................................................................................................. 2 
  

Page 29



 

2 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
1.1.1 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (“the 2003 

Regulations”), as amended, require all local authorities to appoint an independent 
remuneration panel (IRP) to advise on the terms and conditions of their scheme of 
councillors’ allowances.   

 
1.1.2 The Councils formally appointed the following persons to undertake this process and 

make recommendations on its future scheme.   
 
John Bradon – Local resident 
David Rushton- Local resident  
Mr Mark Palmer – Development Director, South East Employers (Chair) 

 
 

1.1.3 Our terms of reference were in accordance with the requirements of the 2003 
Regulations, together with “Guidance on Consolidated Regulations for Local Authority 
Allowances” issued jointly by the former Office of the Deputy Prime Minister and the 
Inland Revenue (July 2003). The terms of reference were as follows: 

 
- To ask the Independent Remuneration Panel to consider an appropriate level of 

remuneration for the role of independent person to the councils’ Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee.  Although it is not yet mandatory for the councils to have an 
independent person on their joint audit committee, this is likely to be a requirement in 
the near future. The panel to recommend a suitable level of renumeration for such a 
role.  The Panel to review the Monitoring Officer’s report to both councils setting out the 
background to the role and the personal specification for the independent person role 
on the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  
 

- To ask the Independent Remuneration Panel to consider an appropriate level of 
remuneration for the six independent persons dealing with code of conduct matters, if 
the panel consider that the roles should be remunerated.  The Panel referenced the 
Monitoring Officer’s report and the recruitment pack for the code of conduct independent 
persons.   
 

 

2. CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Independent Person to the Councils Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee 

 
2.1.1 The Panel considered the Monitoring Officers Report to both Councils that set out the           

background to the role; this also included a Persons Specification. The Panel also            
reviewed comparative data from the limited number of Councils that had appointed to            
the role. The comparative data is set out below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             

Page 30



 

3 
 

 Council Amount per 
annum 

Link 

Peterborough £1500 Independent Members of Audit Committee - Peterborough City Council - 
Peterborough Council – Jobs and Careers  

Hertfordshire £1000 Independent Member of the Audit Committee | | November 2021 
(jobsgopublic.com) 

Southend £1084 SOUTHEND ON SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Sevenoaks & 
Dartford 

£1600 (two 
Councils) 

Independent Member - Audit Committee | March 2022 
(jobsgopublic.com) 

Sunderland  £3139 https://www.northeastjobs.org.uk/Get.aspx?id=11334315  

 
2.1.2 The Panel was of the view that the allowance should be based on that of the Chair of  
            the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. The allowance from 1st April 2023 is  
            £3,535. The Panel was of the view that the Independent Person to the Councils Joint  
            Audit and Governance Committee should receive an allowance of 50% of the Chair of  
           the Committee. 
 
            WE RECOMMEND that the Independent Person to the Councils Joint Audit and 
            Governance Committee receive an allowance of 50% of the Chair of the 
            Committee: £1,768 from 1st April 2023. 
 

2.2 Independent Persons Allowance 
 
2.2.1 The Panel considered the Monitoring Officers Report and the Recruitment Pack for the  

Six Independent Persons dealing with Code of Conduct issues. The Panel also 
analysed the comparative data with regards the allowances for Independent Persons   
as set out in the South East Employers Members Allowance Survey October 2022. 
Finally, the Panel took note of the advice of the Monitoring Officer that each 
Independent Person spent around two days per annum assisting the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

2.2.2 The Panel recommends that the six Independent Persons dealing with Code of  
            Conduct issues should each receive an allowance based on 33% of the Independent  
            Person to the Councils Joint Audit and Governance Committee (£1,768 from 1st April  
            2023). This equates to £583 per annum. 
 
            WE RECOMMEND that the six Independent Persons dealing with Code of  
            Conduct Issues each receive an annual allowance of £583. This allowance is 
            based on 33% of the recommended allowance of the Independent Person to the  
            Councils Joint Audit and Governance Committee from 1st April 2023. 
 
           Mark Palmer (Chair of the Independent Remuneration Panel) 
           Development Director 
 

Page 31

https://jobs.peterborough.gov.uk/job/Independent_Members_of_Audit_Committee/104525
https://jobs.peterborough.gov.uk/job/Independent_Members_of_Audit_Committee/104525
https://www.jobsgopublic.com/vacancies/239144?ga_client_id=c0ac00f8-4023-4478-9df5-8b98dc1e196d
https://www.jobsgopublic.com/vacancies/239144?ga_client_id=c0ac00f8-4023-4478-9df5-8b98dc1e196d
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/4422/co-opted-audit-committee-member-job-description
https://www.jobsgopublic.com/vacancies/269650?ga_client_id=c0ac00f8-4023-4478-9df5-8b98dc1e196d
https://www.jobsgopublic.com/vacancies/269650?ga_client_id=c0ac00f8-4023-4478-9df5-8b98dc1e196d
https://www.northeastjobs.org.uk/Get.aspx?id=11334315

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Appointment to committees, panels and joint committees for 2023/24
	9 Allowances for Independent Persons
	Appendix 1 - Independent Remuneration Panel Report March 2023


